GENERAL INFORMATION AND GROUP REORGANISATION
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13
April 2006 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The companies comprising
the Group underwent a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
to rationalise the Group’s structure in preparation for the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). On
30 June 2006, the Company became the holding company of
the subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Details of the
Reorganisation are set out in the Prospectus of the Company
dated 26 September 2006.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on
10 October 2006.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group is regarded as a continuing entity resulting from
the Reorganisation of entities under common control. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
basis that the Company was the holding company of the Group
for both years presented, rather than from the date of the
Reorganisation. Accordingly, the consolidated results of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2006 include
the results of the Company and its subsidiaries from 1 January
2005, or their respective dates of incorporation or at the date
that common control was established, if later, as if the current
group structure had been in existence throughout the two years
presented. The consolidated balance sheets at 31 December
2005 and 2006 are a consolidation of the balance sheets of
the Company and its subsidiaries at the respective balance sheet
dates. All material intra-group transactions and balances have
been eliminated on consolidation. In the opinion of the
directors, the consolidated financial statements prepared on
this basis present fairly the results of operations and the state
of affairs of the Group as a whole. As the Company was
incorporated on 13 April 2006, no comparative figures are
presented in respect of the Company’s balance sheet.
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REMBMRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except that investment
properties and investments are measured at fair value.

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed
further in note 4.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the Group’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in Renminbi
has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
and in any future periods affected.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(d) Use of estimates and judgements (Continued)
In particular, information about significant areas of
estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements
are described in the following notes:

e Note 6 — acquisition of subsidiaries

e Note 21 — valuation of investment properties

e Note 32 — deferred taxation

e Note 38 — measurement of share-based payments

e Notes 34 and 39 — provisions and contingencies

e Note 40 — valuation of financial instruments

e Note 41 — lease classification

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all years presented in these consolidated financial
statements, and have been applied consistently by Group
entities. Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified
to conform with the current year’s presentation.

(a) Basis of consolidation
(1)  Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that presently are exercisable or
convertible are taken into account. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment losses
(see note 3(n)).

2.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Acquisitions from entities under common control
Business combinations arising from transfers of
interests in entities that are under the control of the
shareholder that controls the Group are accounted
for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented or, if
|ater, at the date that common control was
established. The assets and liabilities acquired are
recognised at the carrying amounts recognised
previously in the Group’s controlling shareholder’s
consolidated financial statements. The components
of equity of the acquired entities are added to the
same components within Group equity except that
any share capital of the acquired entities is recognised
as part of merger reserves. Any cash paid for the
acquisition is recognised directly in equity.

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control, over the
financial and operating policies. The consolidated
financial statements include the Group's share of the
total recognised gains and losses of associates on
an equity accounted basis, from the date that
significant influence commences until the date that
significant influence ceases. When the Group’s share
of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the
Group's carrying amount is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of an associate.
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Bt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(iv)  Goodwill

v)

Goodwill represents amounts arising on acquisition
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. In
respect of business acquisitions, goodwill represents
the difference between the cost of the acquisition
and the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is not amortised but is tested
annually for impairment (see note 3(n)). In respect
of associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment
in the associate.

Any excess of the Group’s interests in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is recognised immediately in profit or
loss. On disposal of a cash-generating unit, an
associate or a joint venture during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances, and any unrealised income and
expense arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised gains arising from
transactions with associates are eliminated against
the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

3.
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Bt

REMBMRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Foreign currency

(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to
the respective functional currencies of Group entities
at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities dominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to
the functional currency at the exchange rate at that
date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary
items is the difference between the amortised cost
in the functional currency at the beginning of the
period, adjusted for effective interest and payments
during the period, and the amortised cost in foreign
currency translated at the exchange rate at the end
of the period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured
at fair value are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the
fair value was determined. Foreign currency
differences arising on retranslation are recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations outside
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), including
goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
consolidation, are translated to RMB at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
revenues and expenses of foreign operations are
translated to RMB at rates approximating to the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange differences arising on
retranslation are dealt with directly as a separate
component of equity.
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Bt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9]

Financial instruments

()

(ii)

Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise
investments in equity, trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings,
and trade and other payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair
value through profit or loss, any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition
non-derivative financial instruments are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment loss.

A financial instrument is recognised if the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the
Group's contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial assets expire or if the Group transfers
the financial asset to another party without retaining
control or substantially all risks and rewards of the
asset. Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e., the date
that the Group commits itself to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the
Group's obligations specified in the contract expire
or are discharged or cancelled.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances
and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
statement of cash flows.

Accounting for finance income and expense is
discussed in note 3(v).

Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of ordinary shares and share options are recognised
as a deduction from equity.

3.
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REMBMRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

[tems of property, plant and equipment are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation (see (iv) below)

and impairment losses (see note 3(n)).

Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of assets. The cost of
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials
and direct labour, and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working

condition for its intended use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items of property, plant

and equipment.

(i) Reclassification to investment property

When the use of a property changes from owner-
occupied to investment property, the property is
remeasured to fair value and reclassified as
investment property. Any gain or loss on
remeasurement is recognised directly in equity. Any
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(iii)  Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the part will flow
to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss

as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(iv) Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings situated on leasehold land 20 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 3 -5 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of leasehold

period and 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values
are reassessed at the reporting date.

(e) Land use rights

Land use rights represent lease prepayments for acquiring
rights to use land in PRC with periods ranging from 40 to
70 years. Land use rights granted with consideration are
recognised initially at acquisition cost. Land use rights are
classified and accounted for in accordance with the
intended use of the properties erected on the related land.

For properties that are held for own use and investment
properties under development, the corresponding lease
prepayments are separately stated as land use rights in
the balance sheet. Land use rights for properties held for
own use are stated at cost, less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses (see note 3(n)). Amortisation
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the land use rights. Land use rights for
investment properties under development are stated at
cost less any impairment losses (see note 3(n)).

For investment properties, the corresponding land use
rights are classified and accounted for as part of the
investment properties, which are carried at fair value as
described in note 3(f).

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Land use rights (Continued)

()

For properties that are developed for sale, the
corresponding land use rights are classified and accounted
for as part of the properties. The amortisation charge
relating to the land use rights is included as part of the
cost of the properties.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties which are held either
to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both. Investment properties are measured at fair value
with any change therein recognised in profit or loss.

The fair values are based on market values, being the
estimated amount for which a property could be
exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction
after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 3(s).

When the use of an investment property changes such
that it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, its
fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for subsequent accounting. When the Group begins to
redevelop an existing investment property for continued
future use as investment property, the property remains
an investment property measured based on the fair value
model, and is not reclassified as property, plant and
equipment during the redevelopment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Investment property under development

Property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property is classified as investment
property under development and stated at cost until
construction or development is complete, at which time
it is reclassified together with the relevant land use right
cost (see note 3(e)) and subsequently accounted for as
investment property. At the date of transfer, any gain or
loss arising on remeasurement is recognised in profit or
loss.

All costs directly associated with the construction of an
investment property, and all subsequent capital
expenditures for the development qualifying as
development costs are capitalised.

Properties under development

Properties under development comprise property
developed for own use or for sale. The development cost
of property comprises costs of land use rights for properties
under development for sale (see note 3(e)), construction
costs, borrowing costs (see note 3(t)) and professional fees
incurred during the development period. Properties under
development are carried at cost, less any impairment loss
(see note 3(n)).

Properties under development which are intended to be
held for sale and expected to be completed within twelve
months from the balance sheet date are shown as current
assets.

Properties under development which are intended to be
held for own use, or for sale and expected to be completed
beyond twelve months from the balance sheet date are
shown as non-current assets.

3.

ANNUAL REPORT 2006
2006 F F

FEEHEE ()

(9)

(h)

RERPRBEME
BIEAZRERIEARBERENE
MEDBRBERTIEY S WIEK
AP B B TR B
7% E T 0 RBSE R B L3 (s FRAEAK
7 (RHEE3(e)) RERARISIE
WME-RERE R REFFTEMEE
M E RSN BRER-

HEEREGEZREMEERNABMRAR
REBERIIAEREKANRBFRENK
ZNS PNV (o

RRPME
BRTYEEREREFEARLEN
M- MENB RN BREFEMEN
e AR AN (RLPHRE3(e)) ~ FREERK
AEERA (RHEE3(M) KBRS
EENEEERE -HRPYWELAA
BAERDRERE (REE3(N) Abke

RIEHERERARNEERET =
B A ATEREERTMEIIEREE
Zo

RIEEAHE RBRREEBEL
—ERRTEROERTYEIEIER

105



106

SPG LAND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED >
BeEH (ER) BRAF

Bt

REMBMRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

(k)

0}

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of each
period are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost of completed properties held for sale comprises
development costs attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale
proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or by
management estimates based on prevailing marketing
conditions.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Investments represent equity securities held for trading.
An instrument is classified as at fair value through profit
or loss if it is held for trading or is designated as such
upon initial recognition. Financial instruments are
designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Group
manages such investments and makes purchase and sale
decisions based on their fair value. Upon initial recognition,
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or
loss when incurred. Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and
changes therein are recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see
accounting policy 3(n)), except where the receivables are
interest-free advances and repayable on demand or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses
for bad and doubtful debts (see accounting policy 3(n)).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Impairment

(i) Financial assets
A financial asset is considered to be impaired if
objective evidence indicates that one or more events
have had a negative effect on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for
impairment on an individual basis. The remaining
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups
that share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

(n)

Impairment (Continued)
(i) Non-financial assets

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

FEEHBEK (B

(n) WERE E)

(ir)

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial
assets, other than investment properties, inventories
and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For goodwill, recoverable amount is estimated at
each reporting date.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying
amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating
unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that
generates cash flows that largely are independent
from other assets and groups.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata
basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses
recognized in prior periods are assessed at each
reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.
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Bt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between cost and
redemption value being recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings on an
effective interest basis.

Employee benefits

(i)  Defined contribution retirement plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
pension plans are recognised as an expense in the
income statement as incurred, except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of properties under
development or completed properties held for sale
not yet recognised as cost of sales.

(i)~ Share-based payments

The grant date fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an employee expense,
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the binomial model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) Employee benefits (Continued)

(if)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the income
statement for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, in which case the adjustment is made to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits). Share-based
payment transactions in which the Company grants
share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of investment
in subsidiary in the Company’s balance sheet which
is eliminated on consolidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 3(r)(ii) if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (Continued)

(if)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

(s) Revenue

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,

can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the

income statement as follows:

()

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognized when
a Group entity has delivered the relevant properties
to the customers and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are recorded as advances
from customers and presented as trade and other
payables under current liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Revenue (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income is recognised in the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in the
income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payment receivable. Contingent
rents are recorded as income in the periods in which
they are earned.

Sales of goods and services rendered

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the
income statement when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer. No revenue is recognised if there are
significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the
consideration due, associated costs or the possible
return of goods, or where there is continuing
management involvement with the goods.

Revenue from property management services
rendered is recognised in the income statement when
the services are rendered.

Revenue from landscape projects is recognised in the
income statement in proportion to the stage of
completion of the projects at the balance sheet date.
The stage of completion is assessed by reference to
work performed. An expected loss on a contract is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Education income

Revenue from provision of education services is
recognised in the income statement on a time-
proportion basis using the straight-line method.
Tuition fees received prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in non-trade payables and
presented under current liabilities.

Government grants
Unconditional government grants are recognised in
the income statement as other operating income on
a cash receipt basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised if they are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
commences when the activities to prepare the asset are
in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are
being incurred. Capitalisation of borrowing costs may
continue until the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. The capitalisation rate is arrived at by reference
to the actual rate payable on borrowings for development
purposes or, with regard to that part of the development
cost financed out of general funds, to the average rate.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Expenses

(i)  Service costs and property operating expenses
Service costs for service contracts entered into and
property operating expenses are expensed as
incurred.

(i)  Operating lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are
recognised in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the income statement as
an integral part of the total lease expense.

Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income on cash
deposits in bank, changes in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and foreign currency
gains that are recognised in profit or loss. Interest income
is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest
method.

Finance expenses comprise interest expenses on
borrowings, net of interest capitalised, changes in fair value
of financial assets at fair value though profit or loss and
foreign currency losses that are recognised in profit or
loss. All borrowing costs are calculated using the effective
interest rate method.
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Bt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Income tax expense

(x)

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly to equity,
in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment
of tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability
method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following
temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that
they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected
to be applied to the temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which
they are declared.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(y) Earnings per share

(2)

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share
(“EPS™) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which is
represented by share options granted to employees.

Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the party or exercise significant influence over
the party in making financial and operating decisions, or
vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject
to common control or common significant influence.
Related parties may be individuals (being members of key
management personnel, significant shareholders and/or
their close family members) or other entities and include
entities which are under the significant influence of related
parties of the Group where those parties are individuals,
and post-employment benefit plans which are for the
benefits of employees of the Group or of any entity that
is a related party of the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEHBK (&)
(aa) BEBEHE

(aa) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment
information as the reporting format for the purposes of
these Consolidated financial statements. No geographical
segment information is separately presented as the
Group’s business segments are mainly managed and
operated in the PRC. The major market of the Group’s
business segments is the PRC.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances, and intra-
group transactions are eliminated as part of the
combination process.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible
and intangible) that are expected to be used for more
than one period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(ab) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
International Accounting Standards Board has issued the
following amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the annual accounting
period ended 31 December 2006 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements:

Amendment to IAS 1,
Presentation of financial
statements: capital disclosures
IFRS 7, Financial instruments: disclosures

IFRS 8, Operating Segments

IFRIC 7, Applying the restatement approach
under IAS 29, Financial reporting in
hyperinflationary economies

IFRIC 8, Scope of IFRS 2 Share-based payment

IFRIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 10, Interim financial reporting and impairment

IFRIC 11, IFRS 2 — Group and
treasury share transaction

IFRIC 12, Service concession arrangements

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and new interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. Up to the date of issuance of these
financial statements, the Group believes that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial position.

NANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FEEEE(E)
(ab) BERFMZ M EN R E
BEZSWHRABEL AR BRE
APERIZ BB BMIA N EIRAER
EVMERT FTER 2R - Az A& AT #
HEANRERNHE—_TTRET A
=t+—HIEtFEHRRLREME
R % E W ERR T W AR -

Effective for
accounting

period beginning

on or after

B LU TR &E M
BAAYE R RAR &2

e SR 19EE] 1 January 2007

AR 2], —TEtF—A—H
BARRRE
BIFR B s S R RIS 755 1 January 2007
BRI T A H#EE T F—-H—H
IR B 75 e 5 2 R 25 855 - 1 January 2009

LB D EB —ETENF—H—H
B sHREREZESETH 1 March 2006

RIEBIER S ET 2R 52957 TEXRNF=A—H

HEREBIRCED

B RERAEYE

BRI E R ELZ B g 88T 1 May 2006
B B B 75 S e AR B 28 2558 ZTTRFRA—A
Batn 2 80 &6

BRI EREZ EgEo. 1 June 2006

EFFHERARITETA
B GHREREZE 2% 1050

—EERNFAA—H
1 November 2006

Fh HABA 53R 5 FR(E —ETEXFE+—HA—H
BRI SRERERE 2115 1 March 2007
BB B 75 R e 2 I 2B 2 857 —ERE=A—H

—SERERKRNRS
BRI REREZEEEE 125 1 January 2008
PRFS A SRR —ZTE\F—A—H

RER B L ERHA L LB R]  #rE R R F 2 Ea iR
WIREIE R E R RS E AT B B E L
EP WA TIE B H AR BR AR L ER]
FER AR T AR B e YA BT L K8
KRR ELEAT &



DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures

require the determination of fair value, for both financial and

non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been

determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based

on the following methods. Where applicable, further

information about the assumptions made in determining fair

values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

(i)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

The fair value of property, plant and equipment recognised
as a result of a business combination is based on market
values. The market value of property is the estimated
amount for which a property could be exchanged on the
date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing
sellerin an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing
wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion. The market value of
items of plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings is based
on the quoted market prices for similar items.

Investment property

An external, independent valuation company, having
appropriate recognised professional qualifications and
recent experience in the location and category of property
being valued, values the Group’s investment property
portfolio every six months. The fair values are based on
market values, being the estimated amount for which a
property could be exchanged on the date of the valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s
length transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the
valuations are prepared by considering the aggregate of
the estimated cash flows expected to be received from
renting out the property. A yield that reflects the specific
risks inherent in the net cash flows then is applied to the
net annual cash flows to arrive at the property valuation.
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REMBMRME

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Investment property (Continued)

Valuations reflect, where appropriate: the type of tenants
actually in occupation or responsible for meeting lease
commitments or likely to be in occupation after letting
vacant accommodation, and the market's general
perception of their creditworthiness; the allocation of
maintenance and insurance responsibilities between the
Group and the lessee; and the remaining economic life of
property. When rent renewals or lease renewals are
pending with anticipated reversionary increases, it is
assumed that all notices and where appropriate counter-
notices have been served validly and within the appropriate
time.

Investments in equity and debt securities

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is determined by reference to their quoted bid price
at the reporting date.

Trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated
as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at
the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of employee stock options is measured using
a binomial lattice model. Measurement inputs include
share price on measurement date, exercise price of the
instrument, expected volatility (based on weighted average
historic volatility adjusted for changes expected due to
publicly available information), weighted average expected
life of the instruments (based on historical experience and
general option holder behaviour), expected dividends, and
the risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds).
Service and non-market performance conditions attached
to the transactions are not taken into account in
determining fair value.

4,

EE

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business. The primary format, business segments, is based on
the Group’s management and internal reporting structure. Inter-
segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets that are expected to be
used for more than one period.

Business segments
The Group comprises the following main business segments:

Sales of property

Lease of property

e  Property management and other related services

Education
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBMRME

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2005

5. 9imE (&)
BFE_ETRF+_A=1+—HILEE

Property

management &

Sales of Lease of  related services
Expressed in RMB'000 property property WEEER Education Elimination Group
HARET AT E WEEE  AEREE He HHEESR 550
Revenue from external customers HRERKE 1,100,205 17,594 30,993 20,384 = 1,169,176
Inter-segment revenue PG - - 41129 — 41,129) —
Total revenue =t 1] 1,100,205 17,594 12,122 20,384 (41.129) 1,169,176
Segment result IR 315,618 54,279 561 (8913) (1,610) 359,935
Net financing income/{expense) BEWA/ (FX) 58 3207 18 (1Y) 2742) = 595
Share of profit of associates NG 1,047 = = = = 1,047
Income tax expense FiEmE (98,390) {1,111) (580) — — (100,081)
Profit/(loss) for the year EERT/ (BR) 21,482 53,186 9 (11,655) (1,610) 26149
Segment assets HHEE 3,149,169 309,406 67,070 187902 (85,914) 3,627,633
Interests in associates BN aER 63,774
Total assets BELE 3,691,407
Segment liabilities SBAR 3,209,838 177323 55,821 143,465 (85,061) 3,501,386
Capital expenditure BRRY 25309 68,195 - 9902 = 103,406
Depreciation Vil 5,069 - 6,206 10,700 = 21975
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2006 FF 3
SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. DWBRE (B
For the year ended 31 December 2006 BE_ZTRE+A=+—HLEE
Property
management &
Sales of Lease of  related services
Expressed in RMB'000 property property WREER Education Elimination Group
HARBT AT E WEEE  REREE HE HHEESR 550
Revenue from external customers PREFRE 1,791,755 3287 2,801 40,475 - 1,887,458
Inter-seqment revenue HEkE — — 43,305 = (43,305) =
Total revenue =3 1] 1,791,755 2421 66,106 40,475 (43,305) 1,887,458
Segment result PHEE 450,329 52,203 4,767 5,488 (10,518) 502,269
Net finance expense RERRTE (8,356) (442) (188) (4,562) = (13,548)
Share of loss of associates EiEBEnER (318) - - - - (318)
Income tax expense FiEmL (78,909) (9.441) (1,043) - - (89,393)
Profit/(loss) for the year SEERN/ (BR) 362,746 4,320 3536 926 (10518) 399,010
Segment assets HHRE 4,085,852 391,480 105,399 251,668 (129232) 4,705,167
Interests in associates BENER 944,134
Total assets HEWE 5,649,301
Segment liabilities SBER 2,705,936 110,084 45,977 206,305 (109,437) 2,958,865
Capital expenditure BRRY 5,659 6,704 940 61,793 = 75,09

Depreciation e 5,328 - 4613 13,860 - 23,801
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6. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

As a part of the Reorganisation, in June 2006, the Company
issued 202,300 ordinary shares as consideration for acquisition
of 49% of the entire interest of Delta Link Holdings Limited
("Delta Link") from Brilliant Bright Investment Limited. In
September 2006, the Company further issued 210,147 ordinary
shares as consideration for the acquisition of the remaining
51% equity interest in Delta Link from Brilliant Bright Investment
Limited. Delta Link acts as an investment holding company and
has not carried on any other business since the date of its
incorporation. Delta Link indirectly owns 50% of The Peninsula
Shanghai Waitan Hotel Company Limited, which is engaged in
development, operation and management of The Peninsula
Shanghai Waitan Hotel. As The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan
Hotel is still at a preliminary development stage and has not
commenced operation, the acquisition of Delta Link has no
significant impact on the consolidated revenue and profit of
the Group for the period from the date of acquisition to 31
December 2006.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s assets
and liabilities at the date of acquisition of Delta Link in

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. WEFLAR
EREBEMEN—E D ARARZTTREN
A #47202,300% & 8% - fE/A BBrilliant
Bright Investment LimitedUf&Delta Link
Holdings Limited ([Delta Link|) ZZ3a%#
49% M E-R-_FTFFNA AQF#
—E17210,1478E BAR - 1E /& B Brilliant
Bright Investment Limited & Delta Link
#2851 % ARAEAYEI B - Delta Link B — IR & 12
B AR] B B FEAK S LA PRI £ AC & fa] H
b %5 -Delta Link 56 _LBINE+F S
JERBRATIS0% M - g sNgE+ BB E
BRATNEME KERERE HBINEF
EBJE AR EINEF SR E R DER
ML EREBER B R RFAGEE HIE
Delta Link3f S AR E B 5 5 Uk B HAe =
—ETRF+ A=+ —BHILHENGA
Woas Bom M E R E R E

R-ZFZXFNA WESERKEDelta
LinkE R ANEREMEEN B EBRA T

September 2006: 2.
Recognised
Pre-acquisition  Fair value  values on
carrying amounts adjustments acquisition
In RMB’000 Note I AERD o 2R
ARBTIT B EE IRmE{E HERE WEsEE
Investment in associate RE &N RIHIRE 25(b) 459,046 407,967 867,013
Other current assets HMREhEE 34 — 34
Other current liabilities HEtrEhatE (38) — (38)
Net identifiable assets AR EE 459,042 407,967 867,009

Pre-acquisition carrying amounts were determined based on
applicable IFRSs immediately before the acquisition. The values
of assets and liabilities recognised on acquisition are their
estimated fair values. The consideration for the acquisition of
the equity interest in Delta Link by the Group was based on the
net book value of Delta Link as at the date of acquisition with
fair value adjustments according to a property valuation report
prepared by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited ("DTZ"), an
independent valuer.

WA B E (A AR R S S T AT A e B A
B RR T B A E R A EREEE
AEETA A E{E- A EBIKEDelta Link g
(B ToiRHEDelta Link 5 A AOBE E R 2
RARE B (B RERTARA R (2
131) IR R B RS TR A A BE
.



REVENUE

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised

during the year ended 31 December 2006 is as follows:

W i
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RBE_ZZRF+_A=+—HILFE
HifR R ) S E 2 R

2006 2005

TN —ZETRHEF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREFIT

Sales of properties e 1,791,755 1,100,205

Rental income WA 32,427 17,594

Property management income PEEBIRA 17,413 12,866

Sales of goods and rendering of services  $5& & fh MR LIRS 5,388 18,127

Education income 2B WA 40,475 20,384

Total At 1,887,458 1,169,176
OTHER OPERATING INCOME HMmESUA

2006 2005

TN —ZETRHEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREFIT

Government grants AT D 12,703 13,579

Gains on transfer of rights and RS E R &R

obligations in a trust agreement (i) R Z 15 2 Wz ) 2,385 —

Others HAtb 770 933

Total a5t 15,858 14,512
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8.

REMBMRME

OTHER OPERATING INCOME (Continued)

(i)

On 6 March 2006, Shanghai Cambridge (Group) Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Cambridge”), Zhongtai Trust and Investment
Co., Ltd. (“Zhongtai Trust”) and China Huawen Investment
Holding Limited (“China Huawen”) entered into a
cooperation framework agreement (“Cooperation
Framework Agreement”) pursuant to which, among other
things, Zhongtai Trust shall hold on trust for each of China
Huawen and Shanghai Cambridge 25% of the enlarged
registered capital of Beijing Tianhong Real Estate
Development Company Limited (”Beijing Tianhong”) and
each of China Huawen and Shanghai Cambridge shall
pay to Zhongtai Trust RMB 150,000,000 which shall be
contributed to the registered capital of Beijing Tianhong.
On the same date, Shanghai Cambridge and Zhongtai
Trust entered into a capital trust agreement (“Capital Trust
Agreement”) pursuant to which, Shanghai Cambridge
appointed Zhongtai Trust as its trustee to hold on trust its
RMB 150,000,000 for the purpose of acquiring 25%
interest of the enlarged registered capital of Beijing
Tianhong and contributing this amount to the registered
capital of Beijing Tianhong.

On 19 May 2006, Shanghai Cambridge, Zhongtai Trust
and China Huawen entered into an agreement for the
termination of the Cooperation Framework Agreement.
On the same date, Shanghai Cambridge, Zhongtai Trust
and China Huawen also entered into an agreement for
the assignment of the trust interests with a third party
pursuant to which, Shanghai Cambridge agreed to assign
and transfer its rights and obligations under the Capital
Trust Agreement to the said third party for a consideration
of RMB152,400,000. The gain of RMB2,385,000, after
deducting a handling fee of RMB15,000 charged by
Zhongtai Trust, is accounted for as other operating income.

8.
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OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 9. HMUEREMX
2006 2005
—EERE —TETHEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
Loss on disposal of property, BB KE
plant and equipment KFEEE 106 11,295
Donations B 30 1,386
Others Eb 77 49
Total At 213 12,730
REVALUATION GAINS ON INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 10. BREMEEFRKE
2006 2005
ZEENRE —ZETRHEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Revaluation gains (note 21) Stk (HEE 21) 39,882 41,752
PERSONNEL EXPENSE 11. BIFAX
2006 2005
ZEENRE —ZETRHEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Wages and salaries TERF® 34,117 27,608
Contributions to defined A E HRET SRR
contribution plans 5,202 3,843
Staff welfare and other allowances EERFI R EMER 10,929 6,297
Equity-settled share-based EREENRNZNRS
payment transactions 10,916 —
Total BE 61,164 37,748
Average number of employees REERTHES AZ
during the year 679 704
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12.

13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBERKE

EXPENSES BY NATURE 12. BFEHSHER
The following expenses are included in cost of sales, selling FTASHE AN - S5 E R TS5 HE ER AN TTIR
and marketing costs, administrative expenses and other f 2 I HoAth A & A ST B ST 40 T -
operating expenses:
2006 2005
—EETX —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR#TT AREETTT
Cost of properties sold BEHEMERA 1,258,624 669,938
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A & 1,600 126
Depreciation e 23,801 21,975
Amortisation of land use rights Tt {5 AR 8 1,487 1,417
Operating lease charges e 6,806 6,062
(Reversal)/provision for bad and RITWR (B ERED) Bt
doubtful debts (16,191) 4,438
FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES 13. MBKARREE
2006 2005
—EETX —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TT AREETTT
Interest income on bank deposits RITE S EUA 19,916 7,717
Net change in fair value of financial RAREEYIERERFERE
assets at fair value through BRIENSHEEAR
profit or loss BEEEFHE 3,176 (931)
Finance income RE WA 23,092 6,786
Interest expenses on bank loans IRITEFA B (88,249) (60,080)
Less: interest capitalized (note 23) B BAERFE (5 23) 60,000 53,890
Net interest expenses ISE=gzzp=e o) (28,249) (6,190)
Net foreign exchange loss Ve 5 E518 558 (8,391) (1)
Finance expenses BRE AR (36,640) (6,191)
Net finance (expenses)/income A (BAR) /U A H5E (13,548) 595
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FRB#MAX
(i) Income tax in the consolidated income statements (i) HEFEAROMSNEAZE:
represents:
2006 2005
—EERE —ETRHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TR ARBTTT

Current tax BN
Provision for PRC enterprise FR B 1b 3 TS R R

income tax for the year REETIE 16,280 48,306
Deferred tax BRIER IR
Origination and reversal of TR ERMEA

temporary differences (note 32(ii)) M@ (FfaE 32(ii)) 77,419 47,010
Benefit of tax losses recognized EERBIEBETE

(note 32(ii) (B3 32ii)) (15,360) (3,020)
Revaluation of investment TEYFESER

properties (note 32(iii) (B 32(ii)) 11,054 7,785

73,113 51,775

Total income tax expense in MEREPTIS T EEE

income statement 89,393 100,081
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as BRAEEREE_ZTNF+_A=1T—HI
the Group did not earn any income subject to Hong Kong 5 AR I MR R EVR S B B RIS T AU - i
Profits Tax during the year ended 31 December 2006 WREHEBNGENRE (CEThF: ARBE
(2005: RMB nil). JT) °

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman BIEFAESHEREBRZESHHRAIRRG &
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not SEBEMNASHEEREBEXHESHEH-.
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the

British Virgin Islands.
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14.

REMBMRME

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(i)

Income tax in the consolidated income statements
represents: (Continued)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations applicable to certain
development zones in the Pudong area of Shanghai,
Shanghai Cambridge and Shanghai SPG Hotel
Development Co., Ltd. are subject to PRC income tax at a
rate of 15%. Other subsidiaries of the Group are subject
to PRC income tax at a rate of 33%, except for Shanghai
New Independence House Property Management Co., Ltd.
(”Shanghai New Independence House"), Shanghai Lishui
Greenary Ecology Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Lishui”), Shanghai Zhuxi Investment Enterprise Co.
("Shanghai Zhuxi”) and Shanghai Cambridge
Construction Consulting Co., Ltd (“Shanghai Cambridge
Consulting”).

Shanghai New Independence House is subject to a
concessionary income tax rate of 15% granted by the
local tax authority in Nanhui District of Shanghai. Shanghai
Lishui, Shanghai Zhuxi and Shanghai Cambridge
Consulting are subject to PRC income tax at deemed rates
of 1%, 5% and 5% of their revenue respectively during
the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005 in
accordance with the Daizheng (#1E) method under
applicable PRC tax regulations.

PRC land appreciation tax is levied on properties developed
by the Group for sale, at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, which
under the applicable regulations is calculated based on
the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including lease charges of land use rights,
borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures. Land appreciation tax of RMB23,406,000
is included in cost of sales in the income statement for
the year ended 31 December 2006 (2005:
RMB55,581,000).
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REEHEFMERNYEER T HE
B8 PA30% ZE60 % K 2 T K Z40
T ER  RIRA BRG] LHIEE
T ¥k & Y 3 A5 SR IER AT B A
X (PR HERAELET R
AEFBYH*EERS) FTE-BEZ
TERFTA=T—HILFE LT
HERARE23,406,000T (ZZF
4 AR¥55,581,0007T) 5 AFIHE
A E P AR 0
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
(ii) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
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2006 F F

14. FRSMFAX (&)
(i) PR MEstRFRERRER

profit at applicable tax rate: AR
2006 2005
—EETX —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TT AREETTT
Profit before income tax bR AT R BT a Al 488,403 361,577
Tax calculated at the rates BASEBE TS AT
applicable to respective HRABEGE
companies that comprise HIAIE
the Group 87,535 96,801
Non-deductible expenses, DAMFL S H (B FBR B A
net of non-taxable income AU B 75 (558) 594
Unrecognized deferred tax assets  RENFAF%E1E R R FER IR
on unused tax losses LEHIEEE 2,416 2,686
Total A&t 89,393 100,081

There are no changes in the income tax rates applicable
to all subsidiaries of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2006. Profit before tax of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2006 was mainly generated by
Shanghai Cambridge and Shanghai Oriental Cambridge
Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Oriental”),
which are subject to PRC income tax rates of 15% (2005:
15%) and 33% (2005: 33%) respectively.

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
3(w), the Group has not recognized deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of certain subsidiaries for
the years ended 31 December 2006 as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can
be utilized will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity.

REZE-ZTTAF+A=1+—RHILFEHH"
REBABTARMNBEAMGHELESE T K
EEREE-_ZTF+_A=1+—HLFEHN
BEANRFEZRE SRR K SRS FER
EHEERARAR ([ LFRA]) 8RB
REBRFESRIZEHEIS% (ZEEAF:
15%) K33% (ZZTZRF:33%) HifTHh P
FriSHie

RIBM W) T &S ER - AR BN T2 F)
ERABNBRBERAPTEKRERA TR EH
F FE R A M) SRR S B SUE T B 1R 78 R P RERR Y
BEEHBEE HASBERE _TTAF 1+
A=t H UL FERERRENELERREE-
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(iii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. FRASRRAX (&)

Deferred tax recognised directly in equity (iii) BEEEESEIRREIERIA
2006 2005
—EETRE —ETRHEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AER®TR ARET T
Relating to revaluation reserve on B RIEEE E IR E YD
property, plant and equipment L EN Y& ]
transferred to investment property  E {4 — (4,597)

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the PRC (“new tax law”) which will take effect
on 1 January 2008. As a result of the new tax law, it is
expected that the income tax rate applicable to the Group's
subsidiaries in the PRC will be changed to 25% from 1
January 2008. If the new rates were used to measure the
Group’s deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as
at 31 December 2006, the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities would increase by RMB12,812,000 and
RMB11,007,000 respectively. These changes, together
with the amounts utilized, will be reflected in the 2007
financial statements. The enactment of the new tax law
is not expected to have any financial effect on the amounts
accrued in the balance sheet in respect of current tax
payable.

(hEARKEMBECEMERE) CATERE
FEl) ERFEARANBRETEZBRARRK
RAGEARGHN _ZEZTLF=A T HAE
B BT N\F— A— BB T RETHAR
EAEE FARBAEANERELEE ==
T)\¢ B— BT A25% - MRAEEE
—EERF A=+ HETEHEHEAEME
ERER T FBUER TR  AREMSHE
ENMBEENEOEESS A MARYE
12 8‘|2 0007TFIA R #11,007,0007T ° & LEiR AT
%ﬁéﬁ?fuﬁi{aE’Jﬁﬁﬁmﬁ“@bﬂ%&@wﬂl&%
@ T EFMBRER - FPEH AN EBEE
ﬁ%i’%ﬂmzxmis’aﬂﬁﬁ{%ﬁxﬁ%g
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2006 FF 3
15. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION 15. EFM&
Basic salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
and other benefit
Fee benefits schemes Bonus Total
EXHS-
2UR  REFET
e Hftfl & AT £(2 1 &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT AR®TRT ARETT AR¥TR

(note 37)
(Fi5E37)
For the year ended BE"SEHF
31 December 2005 +=RA=+—H
LLEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. WANG Weixian FEREXE — 2,065 — — 2,065
Mr. TSE Sai Tung, Stones (i) it 3R ST AE ) — 248 — — 248
Mr. LAl Kin, Jerome R fRhAE — 876 — — 876
Total =) — 3,189 — — 3,189
(i)  Mr. TSE Sai Tung, Stones joined the Group in September 2005. () MEREER -_ZETRFNANMBERER-
(i)  No emoluments were paid to the independent non-executive iy REBEE_ZZTRAF+_A=+—HILFE &&E

directors during the year ended 31 December 2005. ER B X NME B IFRITES
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15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

15. EEM& (&)

Basic salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement

and other benefit Share-based
Fee benefits schemes Bonus payment Total
E¥Hd
2ER  FERFET
ne Hfyflg g fedl B it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARETrE ARETT ARETT ARETR
(note 37)
(MizE37)
For the year ended BE-ZTAE
31 December 2006 +=A=1+-H
LEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. WANG Weixian TRELE - 4,401 — — - 4,401
Mr. TSE Sai Tung, Stones Bt RIEAE — 4388 - 2,736 - 7,124
Mr. LAl Kin, Jerome B OREE — 3,587 = 1,954 6,011 11,552
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry RE# %A 61 — - - - 61
Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP FREEREHL 61 — — — — 61
Mr. JIANG Simon X. BNREE 61 — - — - 61
Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong BRELE 61 — - — — 61
Total At 244 12,376 — 4,690 6,011 23,321
SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION 16. EREEENS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2006 include three directors of the
Company, whose remuneration are reflected in the analysis

AEEHE_FTTAF+_A=1t—HL
FEMNAZRRFMALEEARR=4
EF HMeC#N Lo - REBEELR

presented above. Details of remuneration paid to the remaining EEMA RS T:
highest paid individuals of the Group are as follows:
2006 2005
—BEX —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T AREEFTT
Basic salary, allowances and HEARFH S ER K
other benefits H AR 3,529 1,918
Contributions to retirement MR RAE A FT B 5K
benefit schemes (note 37) (P95 37) — =
Bonuses TEAL 746 —
Total A&t 4,275 1,918
Number of senior management BREEREAH 2 2



ANNUAL REPORT 2006 135

2006 FF 3R
16. SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION (Continued) 16. BREZEMS (&)
The above individuds emoluments during the year ended 31 REBEETZA=+—HIFEUNEALH
December are within the band of RMB2,000,000 to e N FARKE2,000,000E AR
RMB2,500,000 (2005: RMB nil to RMB1,000,000). 2,500,0007C (ZZEZERF: ARBZEAR
1,000,0007T) °
During 2006 no emoluments were paid by the Group to the RETTRNFE NEEW FRES KA
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals as an AR FMA LTI NIME (ERBEMA
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as NEE RS B (E
compensation for loss of office.
17. DIVIDENDS 17. R
Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the board of directors’ BEETTFARBRNESSHBBAR
meetings held by certain subsidiaries, the following dividends ERMREREATROREAT:
were declared to equity holders:
2006 2005
—EETXRE —ETREF
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Dividends % & 105,056 361,043
The above dividends were distributed prior to the listing of the g B TR AN A TR D EH AT SR 3%
Company’s shares. These dividends are not indicative of the A% B MR R ANE B BB B EGE

Group’s future dividend policy.
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BEEL (2R) ARA GA M BRANE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

18. HEKEF

(a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2006 was based on the profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of RMB390,818,000
(2005: RMB262,201,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 814,657,534 (2005:
750,000,000) in issue during the year, calculated as
follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

sREFERT

HE-_TT F+_A=+—ALF
EBREARRF iz L mAAR R (S
s FARK390,818,0007T (Z T
AFE: AR#¥262,201,00070)
MERBEBETEBRZ INETY
#814,657,534 (=T HF:
750,000,000) 5T & &R :

2006
—mE

—_==F/\

No. of shares

B INE 192 Bip®E
Ordinary share issued at 13 April 2006 (note 35) R =TT/ NFMN A +=HET
B AR (PF5E35) 1

Issuance of shares upon the Reorganisation REAREITRMD 1,210,146
Capitalisation issue (note 35) B 21T (F15E35) 748,789,853
Effect of issuance of shares for placing PBLE R AFREEET

and public offering BRI H R 2 64,657,534
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RZBERF+=A=+—HK

at 31 December 2006 BB 8 814,657,534

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue represents the
750,000,000 ordinary shares in issue before the listing of
the Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange, as if such
ordinary shares had been outstanding during the above
entire year.

REBEE_ZTTRF+-_A=+—HI
FE BETH T BRI T SRR
NARRGD B AT E AT B BT E
#%750,000,0000%  J8 4% <5 E 3B A%
R LB EEERND EETT



18. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2006 was based on the profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of RMB390,818,000
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding after adjustment for the effect of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares of 816,197,582, calculated as
follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2006
2006 F F

18. BERET (&)
(b) WEEHERT

REBEE—ZTTF+A=+—H1
FEEREERF TR L RmARAR R E
{ﬁ/ﬁﬁﬂ}\ﬁm@wo 818,0007T KA
BB ECEE T BRTERE T
E@Hxﬁ’mu%%’:ﬁ%{ (816,197,582
BR) GTE FTEAT:

2006 2005
—ETRE ZETRF
Weighted average number of — E @A hn4EF
ordinary shares (basic) B (EXK) 814,657,534 750,000,000
Effect of share options in issue B 21 THEME 2 & 1,540,048 =
Weighted average number of RA+Z=A=+—HK
ordinary shares (diluted) AR I I 2L
at 31 December (E8) 816,197,582 750,000,000

The average market value of the Company’s ordinary
shares for the purpose of calculating the dilutive effect of
share options was based on quoted market prices for the
period that the options were outstanding.

There were no diluted potential ordinary shares as at 31
December 2005.

ARABBAH BB RS EN Y
B THETRIENA BRARER
EiTEN IR R MERE

RZZBEZERF+-_A=+—RHIEL
TEIEEESE N R

137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

138 SPG LAND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED >
mEMBHRME

BB (ZER) ARLF

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. Y% BWERRE

Fixtures
Leasehold Motor fittings &
In RMB'000 Buildings improvements vehicles  equipment Total
HE RE B8
ARETT ¥ MEEE RE R fRE &t
Cost: BE:
Balance at ZEZRE-A—H
1 January 2005 :of=1 74 155,327 20,339 22,102 44,406 242,174
Acquisitions BE 14,104 4,401 4,329 10,262 33,096
Transfer from properties under ERBERTIE
development (note 23) (P3E 23) 17,322 - - - 17,322
Transfer to investment properties (note i) BREIEWE (W) (44.814) = = = (44.814)
Disposals gz (11,079) - (822) (76) (11,977)
Balance at 31 December 2005 —EZRF+-RA=+—-H
:F=1 ] 130,860 24,740 25,609 54,592 235,801
Acquisitions EE 61,792 13 1,634 4,953 68,392
Disposals - — — 212) (1,918) (2,130)
Balance at 31 December 2006 ZEERE+ZA=1+-H
R 192,652 24,753 27,031 57,627 302,063
Depreciation: E:
Balance at 1 January 2005 "“SERE-R-HmEs 13102 11,300 7,595 11,437 43,434
Charge for the year ERME 5,069 4919 4,255 7732 21,975
Transfer to investment properties (note i) BREIEWE (W) (12,232) = = = (12,232)
Disposals ] — — (607) 48) (655)
Balance at 31 December 2005 —EZRF+-RA=+—-H
:F=1 ] 5,939 16,219 11,243 19,121 52,522
Charge for the year ERIE 6,834 4,646 3,984 8,337 23,801
Disposals - — — (159) (957) (1,116)
Balance at 31 December 2006 ZEERE+ZA=1+-H
R 12,773 20,865 15,068 26,501 75,207
Carrying amounts: IRE(E:
At 31 December 2005 ZEBRETA=T-B 124921 8,521 14,366 35,471 183,279
At 31 December 2006 ZEERE+ZRA=1+—-H 179,879 3,888 11,963 31,126 226,856




19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

In 2005, certain properties were leased to third parties
under operating leases. As a result, the Group transferred
the properties to investment properties following a change
in their use. Differences between the carrying amounts
and fair values of these properties at the time of transfer,
net of tax, were recognized directly in equity. The fair
values were determined by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, an independent valuer.

All of the buildings owned by the Group are located in
the PRC.

As at 31 December 2006, buildings with a total carrying
value of RMB96,233,000 (2005: RMB91,019,000) were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings.

ANNUAL REPORT 2006
2006 F F

19. YE -BERER (&)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

HRETHER _STAFRELSE
MOETHE =07 BAKEENFERE
WER RSN EEREREME X
EMFAERFORAERAAEE
EREHRHRRERNERER A
REBERBIEEMBERTERA
BIEE-

AEEHRBNAAETHMNTE-

R-ZTEERE+_A=+—8H &=
B 2 IR E 42 A R #596,233,000
T (ZZEZTRF: AK%91,019,000
7o) RIEFIE AR EBEERERR-

20. LAND USE RIGHTS 20. TifERE
2006 2005
—ZTRE —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETTT
Cost 573
Balance at beginning of year FHEEER 78,940 80,122
Additions N — 4,530
Transfer to investment EREREYHE
properties (note 21) (FfFEE21) — (5,712)
Balance at end of year IR EEER 78,940 78,940
Amortization #is
Balance at beginning of year FHEEER 3,173 1,852
Amortization charge for the year F N 1,487 1,417
Transfer to investment EREREYHE
properties (note 21) (FfFEE21) — (96)
Balance at end of year IR EEER 4,660 3,173
Carrying amounts IRE{E
At end of year T 74,280 75,767
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20. LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued)

21.

Land use rights represent lease prepayments for acquiring rights
to use land, which is all located in the PRC, for own use
properties and investment properties under development.

As at 31 December 2006, land use rights with a total carrying
value of RMB32,285,000 (2005: RMBnil) were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s borrowings.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TifERE ()

T AR R M B 2 BRI T B B L
RENNBRERNR ZF L BIEE R
MERBERBPIREYE-

R-ZTRE+-_A=+—8 AEEZIK
MR 48(E A R #32,285,0007T (ZEZH
£ NREZT) Wt EREEARER

fEE IR M-

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 21. BEME
2006 2005
—EEX —ETRHEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TT AREFIT
Balance at beginning of year FANEEER 259,700 39,400
Cost capitalized AR AR 1,047 —
Transfer from investment properties B H 3 RAIRE
under development (note 22) YIEE (95E22) — 109,706
Transfer from property, plant EE Y HE &
and equipment (note 19) 4 (H5E19) — 32,582
Transfer from land A £ (A
use rights (note 20) (Ff¥3E20) — 5,616
Transfer from completed ER A ERSEYE
properties held for sale (note 24) (B95E24) 33,071 —
Fair value adjustments: NREEFEE: 39,882 72,396
Including: transfer to income B BEENEEK
statement (note 10) (F¥EE10) 39,882 41,752
transfer to equity directly BEEEREER — 30,644
Balance at end of year FIRAESR 333,700 259,700

All the investment properties are rented out under operating

leases.

I REMEIREEMEHHE-




21.

22.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 21. BEYE (B
All the investment properties of the Group are stated at fair REBRBRENENR ST F+ A
value at 31 December 2006. The fair values were arrived at =T —HBENURRBEAR AR EETIR
based on valuations carried out by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung BRER1TER A RETR A EMEE 5%
Limited. The valuations, which conform to the Valuation ZHERBEEBANEMBSHHGREMS
Standards (First Edition 2005) on Valuation of Properties B2 (CEERFFE—hR) #EIT W2 EL
published by Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, have been BIHEEM K (WER) BB A FEE
determined by reference to comparable sales evidence and MEMET BAAEE T ASFENFHE
where appropriate, by capitalisation of net income. The = MEYE BENREEBENE RS
revaluation gains or losses have been credited to the income BREBREREYEMEFSH W BIE#E
statement of the respective year, or, in the case of revaluation T AR
gains arising on transfer of an item of property, plant and
equipment to investment property following a change in use,
to equity directly.
As at 31 December 2006, investment properties with a total REZZERNFTZA=1—H A5EEE
carrying value of RMB197,700,000 (2005: RMB194,500,000) FRIRMEARE AR 197,700,000 (ZFF
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings. FF: AR¥E194,500,0007T) K% B D 1E
RASEBEREFRm-
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22. BRPEEEME
2006 2005
—EETRE ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREETTT
Balance at beginning of year FHEEER 35,250 79,176
Cost capitalized HEINEIRK AR 5,657 65,780
Transfer to investment EREREYHE
property (note 21) (BftsE21) — (109,706)
Balance at end of year FIRAESR 40,907 35,250
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The weighted average capitalization rate of borrowings is
6.02% for the year ended 31 December 2006 (2005: 5.50%).

As at 31 December 2006, properties under development of
approximately RMB1,227,828,000 (2005: RMB1,783,726,000)
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings.

23. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 23. REhYE
2006 2005
—ETRE —ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®BTR ARETTT
Properties under development TE AR 7O DA T B 2R AY
expected to be completed: EEGIEE
— within twelve months —+=Z@AR 505,290 1,319,501
— beyond twelve months — +=@E A% 758,434 966,068
2006 2005
—EEX —ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®BTR ARETTT
Balance at beginning of year FANEEER 2,285,569 1,825,342
Cost capitalized by ifzo)p %N 355,071 1,189,081
Transfer to completed properties ERECERFEYE
held for sale (note 24) (P5E24) (1,376,916) (711,532)
Transfer to property, plant EREYE BER&E
and equipment (note 19) (F47E19) — (17,322)
Balance at end of year FIREE R 1,263,724 2,285,569
Interest capitalization included EFfALIIEEMERE
in the above: IS
Balance at beginning of year FANEEER 77,389 44,248
Cost capitalized (note 13) EANERAS (BF5E13) 60,000 53,890
Transfer to completed properties — BERZE D @K EYE
held for sale (38,522) (20,749)
Balance at end of year R AERR 98,867 77,389
The properties under development are located in the PRC. BRI FEE AR B o

HE_ZTRF+_A=T—HILFE BFEN
MEFHERMCLLER6.02% (—TTRF:

5.50%) °

R-ZTRE+ - A=+—B ANEEDEHE
BHANREEN,227,828,0007T (ZEERFE: AR
#51,783,726,0007T) MR R YIHEIEAREEE

EE Mo
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2006 FF 3
24. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 24, EERFEYE
2006 2005
—EERE —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
Balance at beginning of year FANEEER 187,214 33,697
Transfer from properties under EEEERPYE
development (note 23) (Bf7£23) 1,376,916 711,532
Transfer to cost of sales R S JHE AR (1,143,526) (558,015)
Transfer to investment BRI EYE
properties (note 21) (P3E21) (33,071) —
Balance at end of year FIRAESR 387,533 187,214
Impairment loss provision EFFA_L#LIE B MREE
included in the above: SRR
Balance at beginning of year FH 45 (1,503) (1,503)
Reversal upon sale of properties HEY R D — —
Balance at end of year FIREESR (1,503) (1,503)

All completed properties held for sale are located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2006, completed properties held for sale
of approximately RMB255,035,000 (2005: RMB45,790,000)
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings.

A EERGFEMEDUNFTE-

M-ZBEF+-A=1t—H8 A%£EDE
FREEL A R#255,035,0000T (—TZTH
& AR#45,790,0007T) HIE BRFEY
EIERAEBEENERR-
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BREE (ZER) BRAF HERMBRERMET
25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 25. BiELTESG

2006 2005
—EERE —ETRF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®TT ARETIT

Shanghai ZhongXin Asset LEREEELE
Management Co., Ltd. AR A A (a) 65,187 63,774

The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan EEINEEEAE
Hotel Company Limited BRAF (b) 878,947 —
944,134 63,774

a) Shanghai ZhongXin Asset Management Co., Ltd. a) I BREREEERRAT

2006 2005
ZEERE —ZETRHEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFTT
Cost of investment B A 26,933 26,933
Goodwill on acquisition W BB A P 2,794 2,794
Share of post-acquisition profit DEWEE R R 2,460 1,047
Loan B 33,000 33,000
65,187 63,774

In June 2005, the Group acquired 30% equity interest in
Shanghai ZhongXin Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai ZhongXin" EBRBEELEBRAT),
which was incorporated in the PRC on 6 December 1994.
The issued and paid up capital of Shanghai ZhongXin
amounted to RMB50,000,000. Its principal activity is
property development, sales and leasing.

The fair value of the net identifiable assets of Shanghai
ZhongXin at the date of acquisition was determined to
be RMB89,775,000. The Group's attributable share at
RMB26,933,000 represents its 30% equity interest in
Shanghai ZhongXin. The cost of acquisition was
RMB29,727,000 which was satisfied in cash.

Loan to Shanghai ZhongXin of RMB33,000,000 represents
the Group’s proportional share of a shareholders’ loan,
which is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms
of repayment.

ZEEFRFSNA ARAFIRER -
NS+ = AN B Bz #9
DERSEELEARAR ([ LER
21)30%RE EERSHEETR
R B A AR 50,000,000 B
EEBAMFEER HEREE.

EERERE R BN EREEA
REEEEAARES9,775,0007T 2
EEEHM AREE26,933,0007T5FT
R EERE30% M- ER A A
R#29,727,0007C AR & S f+f o

MESZERENERARE
33,000,000 T (BN AEBF{LERE
FRERMD) AEEIR R B M EETEER
Hio
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2006 FF 3R
25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 25. BREBEARER (B)
b) The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel Company b) LiBBELEEERREAT
Limited
At
31 December
2006
RISEX
+=-A=+H
RMB’000
AR®TR
Cost of investment upon acquisition (note 6)  RUREER BT E A A (Hf7E6) 867,013
Additional investment in paid-in-capital EINEHMRA ZIRE 13,665
Share of post-acquisition loss AMEUEEEEE (1,731)
878,947
The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel Company Limited EENEFSRERRAT ([FNEEH
(“Peninsula Waitan”) (note 43(a)) is 50% indirectly owned &) (Mi7E43(a)) MDelta Link
by Delta Link, and is engaged in development, operation B50% MM Wit =M KENER
and management of The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan EBINEFEIRIE-
Hotel.
On 7 November 2006, Delta Link invested an additional MRZZEEXF+— F+HH, Delta Link
amount of US$1,750,000 (equivalent to RMB13,665,000) AIANEE S B 12 h13% & 1,750,000 7T

to Peninsula Waitan. (FRZEN AR #13,665,0007T) °
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25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 25. BREARER (B)
¢) Summary financial information on associates — 100 0 BIEALTMMBEEIEE —100% :
per cent:
31 December 2005 —EERF+-RA=+—H
Liabilities
fafR
Other Shareholders’
In RMB'000 Assets liabilities loans Equity Revenue Profit
ARBTT BE Hft &R BRERER e i il
Shanghai ZhongXin 341,872 129,423 110,000 102,449 26,964 3,463
LERE
31 December 2006 —2EXRF+-A=+—H
Liabilities
fafR
Other Shareholders’
In RMB'000 Assets liabilities loans Equity Revenue Profit
ARETTT HE Ht & & BRERER e & il
Shanghai ZhongXin 420,465 203,305 110,000 107,160 19,315 4,711
LERE
Peninsula Waitan 2,230,235 471,566 343,582 1,415,087 — 1,902
INEEF S
The summary of financial information on associates EXET 25 00EE & A R & B %5 B R
presented above is based on the fair value of the net L THIRBR R UEE B BREE AR AT R &
identifiable assets acquired at the date of acquisition. EFEN A EBERR-
26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 26. FRFER — FLF
2006
—ETRE
RMB’'000
AER®TTR
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ET D - LA AN 1,465,222
Cumulative fair value of share options ETFRaESMIERE
granted to employees of subsidiaries WREEAREE 4,905

1,470,127
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26. FoFESE —F2F (F)

Percentage of equity
attributable to
Place and date the Company
Name of company of incorporation Direct  Indirect Registered capital  Principal activities
FOTEEEE
EE MBS ST R aalt
S RE# BE L} gMEF TERH
% %
SPG Investment Ltd. British Virgin Islands, 100% — US$T  Investment holding
2 March 2004 1ET REAR
RERIES
“ZTME=AH
Delta Link Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% — US$100  Investment holding
6 May 2004 100%7T  RERR
RBRLER
“TETMERAH
Shanghai Cambridge (Group) Co., Ltd. the PRC, — 98.24% US$67,670,000  Property development,
LERE+S (RE) FRAA 25 August 1998 67,670,005  sales and lease
- FHERE HE
—AANENRZTERA K&
Shanghai Oriental Cambridge Property the PRC, — 99.05% RMB84,130,000  Property development,
Development Co,, Ltd. 26 September 2002 AR®84,130,0000  sales and lease
R RREHELRERAR e FHERE HE
“ZZ_EAACTRA RHE
Shanghai Shikang Property Consulting the PRC, — 71.43% US$140,000  Property agency
Co., Ltd. 7 January 2003 140,000% T and consulting
LRt REERARRA M NERERDH
“ZZ-F-AtA
Huangshan Taiping Lake Resort Hotel the PRC, = 100% RMB60,000,000  Hotel development
Development Co., Ltd. 7 January 2004 AK#60,000,000  and operation
HLA TR REEERERAR . BEREREE
—ZIME-ALA
Huangshan Cambridge Property the PRC, - 100% RMB50,000,000  Property development,
Development Co,, Ltd. 22 July 2004 AK™50,000,0000  sales and lease
ELREFESREHELRRERAR e FHERE HE
“ZEMELAZTZH g

147



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

148 SPG LAND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED >
mEMBHRME

BB (ZER) ARLF

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY (Continued) 26. FATEE —FoOF (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to
Place and date the Company
Name of company of incorporation Direct  Indirect Registered capital  Principal activities
BOFELEE
SRR ST B aglt
CES REH L} #MEs TEEH
%
Shanghai Zhujia Cambridge Property the PRC, 98.73% RMB140,000,000  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 24 September 2003 AK#140,000,00000  and sales
HERERREBRRELERERAT - FHERERHE
“ZE-FNA-TIA
Shanghai New Independence House the PRC, 88.42% RMB5,000,000  Property management
Property Management Co., Ltd. 17 January 2001 AR5,000,0007  services
BN ERERAA hE: EE S
“ET—F-A1+tA
Shanghai Cambridge Country Club the PRC, 97.26% RMB5,000,000  Clubhouse operation
Co, Ltd 22 November 2001 AR¥S5,0000007  EFEE
HERBFSBHELEERAT e
“EE-f+-A-tCH
Shanghai SPG Land Property the PRC, 98.14% RMB10,000,000  Property development,
Development Co,, Ltd. 14 August 2002 AK10,000,0000  lease and
(formerly Shanghai Changning Cambridge HE: management
Property Development Co., Ltd.) “ZZ2-E\ATIA FHERE HE
HEERENEHEEREB AR kER
(RLBRERBISEHELRERAR)
Shanghai Sipo Education Development the PRC, 65.96% RMB70,000,000  Investment holding
Co., Ltd. ("Sipo Education”) 9 October 2001 AE#70,000,0000  REEK
FEREHRERERAR ([REHE]) e
“ET-ETANA
Shanghai Sipo Polytechnic the PRC, 65.96% RMB5,000,000  College education
HERERmER 15 April 2003 AR¥5,0000007 ERHE
-
“ZZ=FMATRA
Shanghai Sipo Vocational Technical the PRC, 65.96% RMB200,000  Technical training
Training Centre 14 October 2003 AK#200,0007  and technology
DERBRERAEI AL e consultancy

“EE-F1TATMA

Bl R M
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY (Continued) 26. FAFERSE — FAF (8)
Percentage of equity
attributable to
Place and date the Company
Name of company of incorporation Direct  Indirect Registered capital  Principal activities
BORENEE
EE MBS ST R aalt
S RE# BE L} gMEF TERH
% %

Shanghai Lishui Greenary Ecology the PRC, — 50.35% RMB5,000,000  Landscape construction
Engineering Co., Ltd. 7 November 2003 AK®5,0000000  project
BRI TRERAA - FEE

“ET=F+-ftH
Shanghai Zhuxi Investment Enterprise Co., Ltd. ~ the PRC, — 98.67% RMB30,000,000  Industry investment,
TEREEEREERAT 2 December 2003 AK#30,000,000  management and
- business consulting
it R Sl EXREEER
R

Shanghai Cambridge Construction the PRC, — 98.67% RMB500,000  Project management,
Consulting Co., Ltd. 29 April 2004 AK#500,0000  consulting and
ERRTERETAARAR - services

“ZEMFNA-TAR NRER FARRSE

SPG Hotel Ltd. British Virgin slands, — 100% US$1  Investment holding

2 March 2004 Xt RABR
RERNES
—TIME-ACH

Shanghai SPG Hotel Development the PRC, - 98.77% RMB75,000,000  Property development,
Co., Ltd. 1 Decerber 2006 AR¥75000,0007  sales and lease

HERREAERRERAA HE FHERE HE

“ZENFT-A-R RHEE

Kunming SPG Land Property Development the PRC, — 98.42% RMB100,000,000  Property development,
Co., Ltd. 9 November 2006 AK®100,000,0000C  sales and lease

ERERENEHERRERAR M FHERE HE

“EERET-ANA kg

All of these entities are controlled subsidiaries as defined under
note 3(a)(i) and have been consolidated into the consolidated

financial statements.

FAZE BRI RME3@)0) e X
FREMEAHARE T RE-
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27. INVENTORIES 27. &8
2006 2005
—EERE —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT
Merchandise Gl 2,108 1,657

Inventories were mainly purchased from external parties and

FEEEREBINTAL WA N AR

are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. ERNEREE AR
28. INVESTMENTS 28. ¥®&E
2006 2005
—EETX —ETRHEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREFIT
Equity securities held for trading FER H B ERES 3,319 6,386
29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 29. FEMRARTR B H it FE U TR
Group Company
TEH EAF
2006 2005 2006
—EERE —ZETRHF ZEENRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT AR%TT
Receivables due from related parties: Pl A A IR
— Chairman of the board (note 43(c)) —BEESTE
(P 5E43(0)) — 13,961 —
— Subsidiaries — fF R F] — — 80,376
— Other related parties (note 43(c)) — HibEEA T
(P 5E43(c)) 18,636 4,013 —
18,636 17,974 80,376
Trade receivables due from JEWE=HINES
third parties FE IR 2,373 2,763 —
Advance payments to contractors TR SRIA 4,542 58,309 190
Deposits for acquisition of B b 55 PR
land use rights HET & 498,853 48,000 —
Non-trade receivables E b U GR 93,104 143,887 710
Tax prepayments TR 30,393 87,854 —
Total EaEr 647,901 358,787 81,276




29.

30.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 29. BWIRRRE KB (&)
The receivables due from related parties are unsecured, non- JE R A TR AERR R ERERE
interest bearing and repayable on demand. RIFER
Non-trade receivable balances, including deposits and advances HibW ISR (BRI RIENE=
to third parties, are expected to be settled or recovered within KIFIE) TEEIR —F B B =
one year.
Tax prepayments mainly represent prepayment of business tax TAF R E 2RARMNE TERPYER
during the pre-sale stage of certain properties under TEBIH) & B o
development.
The ageing analysis of trade receivables at each balance sheet FEUWUIR SR & 455 B RUIRER AT IR T :
date is as follows:
Group
F5EH
2006 2005
—ZEX —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETTT
Within 90 days 90H A 1,141 1,810
Over 90 days and within 180 days 90HZE180H — 120
Over 180 days and within 365 days 180H £365H 399 833
Over 365 days 365 LA E 833 —
2,373 2,763
RESTRICTED CASH 30. ZRFEIRE

Pursuant to relevant regulations, certain subsidiaries of the
Group which engage in property development have restrictions
on their ability to draw cash from specified bank loan accounts
for uses other than the purchase of construction materials and
payment of development costs relating to the relevant property
projects. As at 31 December 2006, the bank account balances
subject to these restrictions amounted to RMB158,521,000
(2005: RMB55,083,000) respectively.

Furthermore, as at 31 December 2006, cash at bank of the
Company of RMB683,196,000 was security for short-term loans
of certain of its subsidiaries.

RIFBERAN NEBE THEMEERY
FRAREEERITERF ORI SER
BEREMH RN E@EYMEIEER BEEK
RN B BRI R =TT NF
+ZA=+—HB EEFTRERHINRITS
O 45828 ARB158,521,0007c (ZEEH
#F: AR¥55,083,0007T°)

WIN R —BERF+-_A=1+—H AR
AIERITTER AR 683,196,000T BEE T
TN A ERE I E Ao
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31.

32.

REMBMRME

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
An analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents is set

31. HeRBAeERY

Re kB EEYNERITINT:

out below:
Group Company
x5E E. 3/
2006 2005 2006
—ETX —EThHE —ZZTX
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TRT AREBTTT AE®TRT
Cash at bank and cash in hand RITIFRRRE 1,660,691 107,817 979,049
Less: restricted cash (note 30) B RBRHIIRE
(F47¥30) (841,717) (55,083) (683,196)
818,974 52,734 295,853

Cash at bank and cash in hand are denominated in:

AT EEEENRITER LR

RMB AREE 598,713 107,650 —
us$ ETT 202 162 —
AU$ JRIT 7 = —
HKS BIT 1,061,769 5 979,049

1,660,691 107,817 979,049

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of
funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange restrictions
imposed by the PRC government.

TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
(i) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheets

ARBWIEE B L BREE KHEELAR
7838 5T BRI R T A B 3 PR o

32. BfFR#ER I BERRRE (AR)
() FEREARKOFUMRERE:

represents:
2006 2005
—EEX —TETRHE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
Balance brought forward AR AR 386 83,712
Provision for income tax for the year FREIFTSHE & 16,280 48,306
Income tax paid BERATEH (6,167) (131,632)
Balance carried forward R 10,499 386




32. TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
(Continued)
(ii) Deferred tax assets recognised:
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the
consolidated balance sheets and the movements during
the year ended 31 December 2006 are as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2006
2006 F F

32. BfIFR#ERBERREE (AR) (&)

(i) ERREERFEE:
BEEGEGEERBERERNELHRE
BEFOHERBE_ZTRF+_A
=t —BLFEEHRNEEHIT:

Temporary

difference
onrevenue  Temporary
recognition difference on
and related  recognition

cost of sales of expenses  Tax losses Total
BaweR
FRBE WIERAH
BEHEHER ERER RHER &kt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTT ARBTT ARETT AR%TRT

At 1 January 2005 —ZTnE—-H—H 147,257 20,550 2,390 170,197
Additions | 22,990 11,916 3,020 37,926
Credited/(charged) to consolidated A/ (IR B) HAFIER

income statements (81,916) — — (81,916)
At 31 December 2005 B e = 88,331 32,466 5,410 126,207
Additions 0 13,044 6,664 15,360 35,068
Credited/(charged) to consolidated A/ (R B) HAFER

income statements (87,766) (9,361) — (97,127)
At 31 December 2006 “EERE+-A=1—H 13,609 29,769 20,770 64,148
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32. TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Deferred tax assets recognised: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2006, the Group had unused tax losses
of RMB112,773,000 (2005: RMB55,043,000) available to
offset against future profits. Deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of tax losses amounting to
RMB62,935,000 at a tax rate of 33% as at 31 December
2006 (2005: RMB16,392,000). No deferred tax assets have
been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of
RMB49,838,000 due to the unpredictability of future
taxable profit streams of the legal entities concerned as
at 31 December 2006 (2005: RMB38,651,000). The
unrecognised tax losses for the year ended 31 December
2006 will expire in the following years ending 31
December:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. BfIFR#ER S BERREE (AR) (©)

(i) ERRBEERREE: (&)

REEERF+_A=1+—H 4~&E
A FR SR T AR I A8 9 AR B PR 756 755 s
BAaAR#112,773,000T (ZEZE R
&: AR¥55,043,0007T) R -
NETZA=1+—8 K EER

33% R EERNELERBEEAAR
#62,935,0007T (ZZTZHF: ARK
16,392,0007T) ° AT EER W E HJE
Rt A SREOBT IS EE AR ==
ERF+ A=+ BUARRESKRH
SEE A R#49,838,0007T (ZEF
hF: ARH38,651,0007T) FERIEIE
RBEEE-REE—_TTF+-_A=
+—HIEFERRERH SRR
ATEE+=—A=1+—HBILFEER:

2006 2005
—EEREF —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
2008 —EEN\F 9,720 9,720
2009 —ETNF 11,023 11,023
2010 —E-TF 17,908 17,908
2011 T4 11,187 —
49,838 38,651

Deferred tax liabilities recognised ERRBEERBERK:

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated balance sheets and the movements
during the year ended 31 December 2006 are as follows:

EEFREBERBERERNELHRE
BEFOHERBEE—ZTTRF+_A
=T HIEFERENZEINT:

Revaluation

of investment

properties

BREMEER

RMB’000

AR®FT

At 1 January 2005 —ZZRF—H—H 609
Charged to consolidated income statements  fE4R & FER NG 7,785
Charged directly to equity BEEESR 4,597
At 31 December 2005 —EFRF+-A=1t—H 12,991
Charged to consolidated income statements  fE4R & AER NG 11,054

At 31 December 2006 ZEETR

F+—-_A=+—H 24,045
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INTEREST-BEARING LOANS 33. HRER
2006 2005
—EERE —TTRHEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
Current s
Secured bank loans BIEMIRITER 635,000 —
Unsecured bank loans HEIRIRIRTTE R 10,000 15,000
Current portion of non-current BEIFRITRABETN
secured bank loans —FREHR D 466,390 712,339
1,111,390 727,339
Non-current 31
Secured bank loans BIEMIRITER 1,255,860 1,109,339
Less: current portion of B BEBETREERD
non-current secured loans —FREEFR R (466,390) (712,339)
789,470 397,000

The secured bank loans as at 31 December 2006 were secured
by the Group’s properties and land use rights with carrying TE X
amount of RMB1,809,081,000 (2005: RMB2,115,035,000)

(notes 19, 20, 21, 23 and 24).

The Group’s non-current bank loans were repayable as follows:

e

R-ZETRFT-_A=1T—"HHEERR

MAESEEEERARE

1,809,081,000 L (ZZEZEHF: ARK

2,115,035,0007T) B3 & 1 Hb {5 B HEE
AR (1519 ~ 20 ~ 21 - 23%%24)

AREBNRRRITEFERA T HRIEE:

2006 2005

—EEZTRN —ETRF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARETTT

Within 1 year —FNR 466,390 712,339
Over 1 year but less than 2 years —EMF 351,000 243,000
Over 2 years but less than 5 years “ERF 438,470 10,000
Over 5 years FFEURE — 144,000
1,255,860 1,109,339
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33.

A BWRARMEE

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS (Continued) 8ot

The effective interest rates of the year ended 31 December
2006 were as follows:

HEREK (2)
REE-EEAF+-A=+—ALFE
BEBRFIE T

2006 2005
= ~FTHF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETTT

Bank loans RITER

6.02% 5.50%

The carrying amounts of current and non-current bank loans
approximate their fair value.

RN RHRTERNREER A EE
R
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34. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 34. FEfHIRFRER HALME R
Group Company
FEH b /NG|
2006 2005 2006
—EEBRFE —ZThHE —EBEBRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TR ARET T AR®TR
Payables due to related parties: FESTRAZE A 5K :
Trade related (note 43(c)) B A LB
(PFF7E 43(c)) 16,839 22,551 —
Non-trade related: E AR R
— Dividends payable — ERIRE
(note 43(c)) (M 5E 43()) 9,173 168 —
— Subsidiaries — FRA] — — 12,110
— Other related parties — EfthBEE AT
(note 43(c)) (BFE 43(c)) 11,101 16,050 —
37,113 38,769 12,110
Trade payables FERTBR TR 288,185 741,236 —
Advances from customers TEW = = FIE 366,424 1,356,608 —
Other taxes payable HAbpE(IFHIR 183,370 166,292 —
Non-trade payables and accrued HAb e R ANTERE A
expenses 148,369 60,765 14,905
Total A&t 1,023,461 2,363,670 27,015

The payables due to related parties are unsecured, non-interest

bearing and repayable on demand.

The ageing analysis of trade payables at each balance sheet

date is as follows:

VEEE ARSI T
2006 2005
—®EAFE  —TTRF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREETTT

Within 90 days

Over 90 days and within 180 days
Over 180 days and within 365 days
Over 365 days and within 3 years

90H A

BEI0OR E180H
BiE180H £365H
BiB365H E3F N

247,620 156,447
19,222 107,708
26,623 365,173
11,559 134,459

305,024 763,787
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34. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Other taxes payable include provisions for land appreciation
tax totalling RMB 175,435,000 as at 31 December 2006 (2005:
RMB164,653,000).

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including amortisation of land use rights, borrowing costs and
all property development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in property development
business in the PRC are subject to land appreciation taxes, which
have been included in the cost of sales. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various districts
and the Group has not finalised its land appreciation tax returns
with various tax authorities. Accordingly, significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of land appreciation and
its related taxes. The ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
these liabilities based on management’s best estimates. \Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the cost of sales and provisions of land appreciation
taxes in the period in which such determination is made.

35. SHARE CAPITAL

34. EARBREMBEMAR (E)

REZERF+ZA=1+—8 EMEEH
EHRREITHEEHREEGXARK
175,435,000 (ZEZTHF: AR
164,653,0007T) °

A B Tt (B R T B L B E A S B EUE
(BN EMEFTS IR 215 T 1 AR
S BB R T A M R F S AT AR A
MRFAT) BN F30% E60% TN EHIER
=B

AEEETEREYEEREBN T AT
BRBMA T IRET R AHERA
A ETFEBE ZEREANERSEE
£ EAKERARETNRARERERKER
FERE IR E R - It FEEE R L 3 3R(E
SR NMEARETAERAFLEAHE - B
FEBBRETRREENHBARTHREN
AEBEZRE R ENREGHFERZEFA
B i F TR KRB BRGNS
BAR AR ERHETEEFLBRRES
B 81 6 PO AN B - IR (E A B 4 o

35. B®F

At 31 December 2006
R-EERFE+ZA=+—H
The group and the Company

EREMELT
No. of shares Amount
Bxin& B kit
HK$'000
FHT
Authorised: JERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SRRAEE.. 1B ITR LB 10,000,000,000 1,000,000




35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

35. &
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At 31 December 2006
RIZEERFE+ZA=+—H
The group and the Company

EREMELTF
No. of shares Amount
B8 HE &
RMB'000
ARETTT
Ordinary shares, issued and Tl BBITAAE:
fully paid:
At 13 April 2006 (note (i) —EERFHA + B (FF3EG) 1 1
Issuance of ordinary shares upon REAREITEBK
the Reorganisation (note (i) (B &EG)) 1,210,146 123
Capitalisation issue (note (iii)) & A BT (T RE) 748,789,853 76,317
Issuance of ordinary shares for MALE R ARBEEET
placing and public offering AR (FEEv)
(note (iv)) 287,500,000 29,130
At 31 December +=ZA=+—8 1,037,500,000 105,571

(i)

(ii)

The Company was incorporated on 13 April 2006 with
an authorised share capital of HK$400,000 divided into
4,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each. On 13 April 2006, one
subscriber’s share of HK$0.1 in the Company was allocated
and issued nil-paid to Starwaly Properties (Group) Pty Ltd.
("SPG"), the ultimate holding company.

On 30 June 2006, the Company issued 797,699 ordinary
shares at par to SPG in consideration of acquiring the
equity interests of the subsidiaries of the Company from
SPG.

On 30 June 2006, the Company issued 202,300 ordinary
shares to purchase 49% equity interest in the issued capital
of Delta Link. On 19 September 2006, the Company
acquired the remaining 51% equity interest in Delta Link,
which was satisfied by the issue of 210,147 ordinary shares
of the Company (note 6).

(i)

(ii)

ARABR_EZRFHA+=HEM
B R TERA400,0008 70 H B
4,000,000A% ZAXEEO0. 178 TTAR (D o A<
RNARZZZRFM A+ =B RE&K
A% A Al Starwaly Properties (Group)
Pty Ltd. ([SPG]) FRZs 3T —REMR
EEO. 18T B AR B REE AR ©

W=ZBAFAASHE ARAME
E{ERSPGEE17797,699A E @A 1E
[BAARD T RSPGUEET A AIRIA

RESREE-

REZZERFANA=1TH RRARET
202,3000% & @ AU BE Delta Link B

BITIRAFA9% i - R T T NF
HA+NB RATUEDelta LinkEH
BR5 1% ARHE - i YK B BI LA BE AT AN A 7]
210,147 E @A e 75 2 (9 5E
6) °
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

At an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 19 September 2006, the shareholders approved the
increase in authorized share capital of the Company to
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
HK$0.1 each. On the same date, the shareholders also
authorised the issue of 748,789,853 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each by way of capitalisation of HK$74,878,985
(equivalent to RMB76,317,000) from the share premium
account upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

On 10 October 2006, 250,000,000 ordinary shares were
issued and offered for subscription at a price of HK$4.78
per share upon listing of the Company’s ordinary shares
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. On 17 October
2006, an additional 37,500,000 ordinary shares were
issued and offered for subscription under the over-
allotment option. The proceeds of HK$28,750,000
(equivalent RMB29,130,000) representing the par value,
were credited to the Company’s share capital. The
remaining proceeds of HK$1,345,500,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,363,261,000), before the share issue expenses of
RMB70,247,000, were credited to the share premium
account.

Share capital at 31 December 2005 represented the
aggregate amount of paid-in capital of the companies
comprising the Group, after elimination of investment in
subsidiaries.
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(iv)
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36. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES 36. BRIDBER G
(a) The Company (a) E2AF
Capital reserves
(undistributable)
Share  Contributed —employee  Retained
premium surplus share option earnings Total
BXRE
(FUSE)
RiyaR  ERE® —-GRMEE REAN &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARWTR AR%TRT ARRTRT AERTR
(note 36(b)) (note (i) (note 38)
(B3 36(b)) (FE()) (it 38)
At 13 April 2006 (date of incorporation) “EEXEMAT=H
(Galiaaz) - - — — -
Avrising from the Reorganisation RE@EE — 308,439 — — 308,439
Issue of shares for acquisition of subsidiary ~ EUREF A RETRA
(note 6, 35) (Rt 6, 35) 867,740 - - — 867,740
Capitalisation issue BARLELT (76,317) - — — (76,317)
Issue of new shares by global offering NRHEERXETHRG 1,363,261 — - — 1,363,261
Placing and listing expenses RER Em¥ (70,247) — — — (70,247)
Equity settled share-based transactions NRAGEERHZANRS - - 10,916 - 10,916
Loss for the year FEER - — - (5,926) (5,926)
Balance at 31 December 2006 ZEENETZAET-H
e 2,084,437 308,439 10,916 (5926) 2,397,866
Note: Bt e -
(i)  The excess of the consolidated net assets represented by (i) FTEBARGAEEEMNREFESREA

the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company in exchange under
the Reorganisation was transferred to the contributed
surplus account in the Company’s financial statements.

AR BRI ERREN D DB R

EEH R
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36. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies Law, the funds in the share premium account
of the Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of the business.

Merger reserves

The merger reserves represent the difference between
Company’s share of the nominal value of the paid-up
capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value
of the ordinary shares issued by the Company in exchange
thereafter.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to property reclassified as
investment property. For such reclassifications, the
cumulative increase in the fair value of the property at
the date of reclassification in excess of any previous
impairment losses is included in the revaluation reserve.

PRC statutory reserves

Transfers from retained earnings to PRC statutory reserves
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the
Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and were
approved by the respective boards of directors. The
statutory reserves consist of:

(i)  General reserve fund
Transfers from retained earnings to the general
reserve fund were made in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
and were approved by the respective boards of
directors.
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36. BRI BRER MW (&)

(b)

(9]

Bz 7R {E
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(d) Ef&cEH

(e)

EfFBEERSEASRENENY
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36. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES (Continued)
(e) PRC statutory reserves (Continued)

()

(ir)

General reserve fund (Continued)

For the entity concerned, the general reserve fund
can be used to cover previous years’ losses, if any,
and may be converted into capital in proportion to
equity holders’ existing equity holdings, provided that
the balance after such conversion is not less than
25% of their registered capital.

Enterprise expansion fund

Transfers from retained earnings to the enterprise
expansion fund were made in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
and were approved by the respective boards of
directors.

For the entity concerned, the enterprise expansion
fund can be used for business development purposes
and for working capital purpose. This fund is non-
distributable other than upon liquidation. Transfers
to this fund must be made before distribution of
dividends to the equity holders.

(f) Translation reserve

(9)

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency

differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with

in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note

3(b).

Distributable reserve

As at 31 December 2006, the aggregate amount of

reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company was RMB2,386,950,000.
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36. BRI BRERGEME (&)

(e)

(f)

(9)

PEEEREM (&)

() ZEEBIEE (B)
RBEENARME —RAES
ARERE LEEER ()
IRAZ RS B AR ORE AR EL
IR BB e IRIR AR
BAREMEARN25% °

(i) FPFRERED
HAREBEMNEBRECEERES
TIRBAR R B FRAIMEZAE
ET WTEXBEZTSHE-

REBNARME CXRERES A
ERBBRLREEET HBBRIN Z
E& AR ke ABHERA A IKEE
B AASREBENEREZES-

ER M

PE L R B YR AT A R E R INETE
FITS R MEE L RIINE Z 58 LR
TORIRF FE3(0) PR BL Y & R T IR R IR IR

] 5 R Gk R
R-BEXF+_A=+—H DK
TARRBRROFEHEEABERIARE
2,386,950,0007T°
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38.
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mEMBHRME

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the relevant
local government authorities in Shanghai whereby the Group
is required to make contributions to the Schemes at the rate of
22% of the eligible employees’ salaries. The local government
authorities are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

The Group has no other obligation for the payment of pension
benefits associated with those schemes and other post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions described
above.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

On 19 September 2006, the Company approved and adopted
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is to recognise the contribution of certain
executives, employees and directors of the Group who are in
full-time employment of the Group to the growth of the Group
and/or to the listing of the Company’s ordinary shares on the
Stock Exchange by granting options to them as incentive or
reward.

Options granted hereunder shall vest in the relevant option
holder in tranches in the following manner:

(i) 25% of the options vested on the date of grant at an
option price representing 80% of the global offering price
(HK$4.78 per share) payable on the exercise of the options;
and

(i)  25% of the options shall vest on each of the first, second
and third anniversaries of the date of grant (“subsequent
tranches”) at an option price representing 90% of the
global offering price payable on the exercise of the options.

37.

38.

& REHiEF
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
No options may be exercised until after the expiry of twelve
months after the date of vesting in accordance with the above
(provided that options vested under (i) above shall not be
exercisable within twelve months from the listing date on 10
October 2006).

The total number of shares subject to the Pre-IPO Share Option
is 18,540,000 shares, out of which 7,500,000 shares and
11,040,000 shares were granted to key management and senior
employees repectively.

All options are to be settled by physical delivery of shares.

Fair value of shares involved in the options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the services
received is measured based on the binomial model as required
by IFRS 2. The contractual life of the option is used as an input
into this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated
into the model. The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is based on the fair value of share options
granted, measured using a binomial lattice model, with
following inputs:

Fair value at grant date BTEHHRAAEE
Share price fxE

Exercise price 7B

Volatility ]

Option term A A e HARR
Expected dividend yield TEAAAR B &

Risk-free interest rate (based on ERRFIE (LAES
Hongkong Exchange Fund

Notes Rate)

SNER G RIBEHNRSEAE)
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38. B&iA%ft (&)
BiEEX FEE BB —EAEmES
AT TR ARAE (MEARIR = 3C()Fr s BB A BB AR
R F+ A+ 8 LmBEHE
+—EARRBITE) -

BRAFRBRATIERR T SIS KA AR (D
#2217%18,540,000[% * EH17,500,0000% f
11,040,000 RE SRR TEEZEEREAE
REffES-

FARERESERBEE RN MNESR
MREREMRS RRGHARBER MR

ARRERFT H E BB AR T ES AR IS R A2
BEDZ2RAROBEENAAEEAE.
FTES BRSO 2 A2 BEM T TR IBEIFR
BREER B2 AAHREN —BRAGE
BN RF T REXRA M EE
IR IR RITEM AR TIET AZIE  BIREL
PR BB MBUS RN AR BETS
REBFMROBRENAABEER ZHE
At FEEENATEE:

HK$41,515,10778 7T
HK$4.787 7T

HK$3.824/8 7T — HK$4.30278 7T
51.16% - 51.21%

3 - 5 years®F

0%

3.955% - 4.077%
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of shares involved in the options and
assumptions (Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility, adjusted
for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly
available information. Expected dividends are based on
estimation of management. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for certain
purchasers of property units and provided financial guarantees
to secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments. The
outstanding guarantees amounted to RMB145,405,000 as at
31 December 2006 (2005: RMB548,055,000). Such guarantees
terminate upon the earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate
ownership certificate which will generally be available within
six months after the buyer takes possession of the relevant
properties; and (i) the satisfaction of the mortgaged loan by
the buyer of properties.

In the opinion of directors of the Company, the fair values of
the financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant
at initial recognition and the directors consider that the
possibility of default by the parties involved is remote.
Accordingly, no value has been recognised in the balance sheet
as at 31 December 2006.

38.

39.

BRIzt (&)
MERERS RGO ARRERRAR (B)

TR iR AT 2R iR R AR WIRIB A

FHIEHIR R R & B A ) (A = B M F
AERBHL-BHRE HRIBEEE BT

AE-IBERRNEBIHAAEBEMGE
EEATE-

BB TOIRIB AR IR L - FE AT B P ERR
BREHE BN AR EERILEEEZIA
fi A - B AR R B 35 R B A (AT T 53 10 A o

MR
REBEEHBOYMEEVNEFNIRBE
HEZEBETNEREFREMBER.
RZZEERNF+ZA=1+—H BERLHAE
1R A& ANR#145,405,0007T (ZBEERF: A
R#548,055,0007T) o2 EHEIRA A TERE
BRI (R E i EMAEREE (—RE
BEREEEMYERSNERAANEL) K &
(VB 7 EEIRIEE o

ARBEZR R AREUBHERSONE
REREN AR BERE MEFARERH
RIRITT BB SR WERR —F
ERFT_A=+—HONEERBRTHE
RIEMAEE-



40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, interest rate and currency risks arises in the

normal course of the Group’s business.

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

Credit risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure
to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. The Group had no significant
concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheets.

Interest rate risk
The interest rates and term of repayment of bank loans
of the Group are disclosed in note 33 above.

Foreign currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange.
The exchange rates adopted for the foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the
People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by
supply and demand.

Fair value

The carrying amounts of significant financial assets and
liabilities approximate to their respective fair values as at
31 December 2006.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Fair value (Continued)
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value for each class of financial
instruments:

(i)  Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables
The carrying values approximate fair value because
of the short maturities of these instruments.

(i) Bank loans

The carrying amount of bank loans approximate their

fair value based on the borrowing rate currently

available for bank loans with similar terms and

40. &@MTIH (&)

AREE (E)

HEt ST EERIA R BERREA
AR 7R R R RR :

(d)

()

He RELFEBY ZIRHIEL
FEN IR A R Bt fE 50 BT
PR XK EL A E (T 50R

BHRZETAHEERARZIES

BOREERRQ A EERT-

(i) RITEK

RIBIRE AR B G R BIH A
HENRITEFRNEREHN X R
TERMRAERR L EER

maturity. ire
. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 41. EEHERE
(i) Leases as lessee (i) fESEBEARES
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as TR REEE SR EAR A T BRI 2
follows: ST

2006 2005
—EEX —ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
Less than one year —F R 5,345 4,499
Between one and five years —dEEn s 557 4,161
Total BET 5,902 8,660

The leases, in respect of office rental charges, run for a

period within 5 years.

B NER SR ARNEEEDFAREW-
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41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued) 41. EEHERE (&)
Leases as lessor (i) EHEHEANESR
The Group leases out its properties, which include REBBRBCEHEL B BIEER
investment properties and completed properties held for R EYSE At B[R e S EL
sale leased out on a temporary basis, under operating RIBFN R BEETEE S RZARLA T EAE
leases. The future minimum lease payments under non- A BEEREEERERT:
cancellable leases are as follows:
2006 2005
—EETRE —ZETRHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Less than one year —FNR 33,656 24,928
Between one and five years —dEEn s 78,460 68,767
More than five years BiEhF 278,095 229,987
Total A&t 390,211 323,682
For the year ended 31 December 2006, RMB18,402,000 BHE_ZETEFTA=1T—HItHF
(2005: RMB15,479,000) and RMB14,025,000 (2005: B BRI EMEMNER LA EEK
RMB2,115,000) were recognized as rental income in FEUEEFNBERERNHSKRAD
respect of investment properties and completed properties AlAARE18,402,0007C (ZEEFH
held for sale leased out on a temporary basis respectively F: AR¥15,479,0007T) AR
in the income statement. 14,025,0007C (ZEZhF: ARK
2,115,0007T) °
42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. BEXKIE
2006 2005
—ZTRE —ZETHF
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARWTT ARBTT

Property development activities: M RIEE:
— Contracted but not — BRIAVEREE

provided for

— Authorized but not — BERERETH

contracted for

818,708 403,385

1,407,707 1,818,415

Total

2,226,415 2,221,800
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and
certain related parties in which a director or shareholder of the
Company is in a position to exercise significant influence are as
follows:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2006, transactions
with the following parties are considered as related party

transactions:

Name of party Relationship

— Mr. WANG Weixian The founding equity holder and Chairman
of the Company;

Controlling shareholder of the Company's

ultimate holding company

— Mr. MAO Yongming A minority equity holder of Shanghai New
Independence House and director of
various operating subsidiaries of the
Company

— Starwaly Properties (Group) The ultimate holding company

Pty Ltd.("SPG")
— Shanghai ZhongXin Asset An associate of the Company

Management Company Limited
("Shanghai ZhongXin")

— Shanghai Yunjie Real Estate Controlled by Mr. MAO Yongming
Consultancy Company Limited
(“Shanghai Yunjie")

— Shenzhen Huibo Investment A minority equity holder of Sipo Education
Development Company
Limited (“Huibo")

— The Peninsula Shanghai 50% indirectly owned by Delta Link
Waitan Hotel Company
Limited (“Peninsula Waitan")

— Shanghai Sendao Xinxing Controlled by a close family member of
Men Chuang Co., Mr. WANG Weixian
Ltd ("Sendao”)

43.
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FREBRE BATALETHR SR A

BEALRS:
BBALER

-IfERE

R Covinid

—Starwaly Properties
(Group) Pty Ltd.
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Recurring transactions

43.

ANNUAL REPORT 2006

2006 FF3{
WEALZS ()
(b) EEXZH
2006 2005
—®BAE  _TTRA
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTTT

Construction cost: BRIERL AN
Sendao RS

Sales commission expense: SHEMSRY:
Shanghai Yunjie EBER

Sales of services: AR5 EHE :
Peninsula Waitan HNEEF S

Construction cost, sales commission expense and sale of
services were charged based on the services rendered by
the related parties to the Group and in accordance with
the terms of the underlying agreements.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
above related party transactions were conducted on
normal commercial terms and were priced with reference
to prevailing market prices, and in the ordinary course of
business.

18,615 26,596
7,172 14,478
6,908 =

BERRA SHE RS R MR ARSI
NIRIRREE A £ A2 SR B A0 AR 75
Ko 7 [ 15h o IR R U

AAREER R LARMEA LR ZR
—REEEERBRBTET A2
ZERMEETER-
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Balance with related parties

43.

MEALZES (&)
() EHMREALHREER

As at the end of 2006, the Group had the following HE_ZTRFE ~AEEEEEA
balances with related parties: THI T4
2006 2005
—EEX —ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREEFTT
Trade balances due from related FEULREE A +ZRIB A&
parties (note 29): (BF5E29 ) :
Peninsula Waitan SN 6,908 —
Non-trade balances due from  fEUKEEE A - E &
related parties (note 29): Wkt an (FisE29)
Mr. WANG Weixian and his TEELEREFE
close family members — 13,961
Mr. MAO Yongmin FEKBASEAE — 500
Peninsula Waitan HNEFE 8,744 2,411
Shanghai Yunjie EBER 2,984 1,102
18,636 17,974
Trade balances due to related ~ JE{TREZE A TFRIE 54
parties (note 34): (Ff¥5E34) -
Sendao RS 16,839 22,551
Non-trade balances due to FESTREIE A T EABFE 3R
related parties (note 34): #eR (FisE34) -
SPG SPG
— dividends payable —ERARE 9,173 168
— other payables — H M FEI IR 4,051 —
Shanghai Yunjie EBER — 9,000
Huibo PETH 7,050 7,050
37,113 38,769

Amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

EREEER

FEALFE BB A TR AEIER - 2 8 RAR



43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

(i)

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
note 15 and certain of the highest paid to employees as
disclosed in note 16, is as follows:
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43. MEALES (&)

(d) FRREEARFHH
BAREEABHM RIEEME15F
WENEEFNFIEN 16 IRERN
e EHEREATRE BT

2006 2005
—_— 7/\$ :;ﬁgﬁﬂz
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TR ARET T
Salaries and other emoluments & K H At Er Bl 21,341 5,107
Share-based payment A& 215 6,011 —
27,352 5,107
44. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 44. BHEBEEHR
Dividend (i) BR

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the board of directors BEAEER-_ZZTLFMNA+=H

meeting held by the Company on 12 April 2007, it was BHNEEFSSRBENRER AR

(ii)

resolved that no dividend was declared for the year ended
31 December 2006.

Acquisition of land use rights

On 27 March 2007, the Group acquired a parcel of land
in Kunming through a listing-for-sale (##) held by the
Land Transaction Centre of the City of Kunming (&8
+ 1532 57 0)) at a total consideration of RMB292 million.
The land site occupies approximately 63,365 sg.m., which
will offer an aggregate gross floor area of approximately
221,000 sg.m. for both residential and commercial
development.

AEBATEREE ST EF+ A
E—'——Ea’\jfﬂz/ﬁﬂﬁzﬂﬁ/ﬂﬂi/%\o

(i) WELERE
RZEE+F=A=+tH A&EEH
LA#EET AR #292,000,000 T # 15 B
BT LR S HOENER 5 M —5
(EFAMA) Lo (EbmEERD
63,365 I RAIHL IR - AR L ABETAD
221,000 REEEEE  AREE
MEEERAS-





